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Julie K. Lutz, Esq.

Elizabeth Krupa, Esq.

Attorneys for Plaintiff

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
1801 California St., Suite 1500

Denver, CO 80202-2656

(303) 844-1000 Unitod Statss CoUr .
FAX: (303)844-1068 Southern PAsri
Nov 92004

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT . Giark of Gomt
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 1wl n85Y
HOUSTON DIVISION

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,
Civil Action No.

_— H-04-4291

Lloyd P. Broussard
Winfred Fields
Monyette R. Preciado
Raven Interests, Inc. and
Tenn-Stone, Inc. ,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission (“Commission”), for its Complaint alleges as
follows:
SUMMARY |
1. This is a governmental enforcement action seeking injunctive and other relief based

upon violations of the antifraud and securities registration provisions of the federal securities laws.
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The case involves the dissemination of false information by defendant OSF, Inc. (“OSF”), its chief
executive officer, defendant Lloyd P. Broussard, (“Broussard™), and its chief financial officer,
defendant Winfred Fields (“Fields™), for the purpose of facilitating an illegal distribution of more
than 22.2 million OSF shares to the public between August 2003 and June 2004. Fields, and two
corporate entities that he and Broussard controlled, defendants Raven Interests, Inc. (“Raven’) and
Tenn-Stone, Inc.(“Tenn-Stone™) (collectively, the “Controlied Entities”) sold the unregistered OSF
stock, which had previously been purchased from OSF in exchange for promissory notes.

2. To facilitate the distribution, Broussard and Fields issued a series of false and
misleading press releases between June and September 2003 concerning OSF’s purported business
relationships with third parties, corporate revenues, and purportedly imminent NASDAAQ listing.
In furtherance of the scheme, Broussard and Fields also arranged for the dissemination of numerous
unsolicited faxes and spam e-mails to prospective investors, which republished certain of the false
and misleading press releases. While this information was being disseminated, the Controlled
Entities, which were nominally owned by Broussard’s daughter, Monyette R. Preciado (“Preciado™),
and Fields sold a substantial amount of OSF stock into the public market. The resulting proceeds
were used to finance OSF’s operating expenses and for the personal benefit of Broussard, Fields, and
Preciado.

3. The Commission, in the interest of protecting the public from any further illegal
activity, brings this action against the defendants, seeking preliminary and permanent injunctive
relief, disgorgement of ill-gotten gains, prejudgment interest thereon,. and civil penalties. As to

defendants Broussard, Fields and Preciado, the Commission additionally seeks penny stock bars. As
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to defendants Broussard and Fields, the Commission additionally seeks an order barring each from
serving as an officer or director of any public company.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

4. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Section 22(a) of the Securities
Act 0f 1933 (“Securities Act”) [15 U.S.C. § 77v (a)] and Section 27 of the Exchange Act[15 U.S.C.
§ 78aa]. In connection with the acts, practices, and courses of business described in this Complaint,
each of the Defendants, directly or indirectly, has made use of the means or instrumentalities of
interstate commerce or of the mails. Venue is proper because some of the acts, practices and courses
of business described in this Complaint occurred within the jurisdiction of the Southern District of
Texas, defendant OSF is located in this jurisdiction, and defendants Broussard, Fields and Preciado
reside in this district.

DEFENDANTS

5. OSF, Inc. (f/k/a Chicken Kitchen Corp.) is a Delaware corporation with headquarters
in Houston, Texas. OSF operates as a holding company with subsidiaries engaged in mortgage
lending, healthcare and boxing promotion. OSF’s stock is publicly held and is quoted in the
electronic quotation service operated by the Pink Sheets, LLC. In Mz;y 2003, the company engaged
in a reverse merger with a privately held Texas corporation owned by Broussard and Fields, and
changed its name to OSF.

6. Llovd P. Broussard resides in Houston, Texas. He has been OSF’s chief executive

officer since May 2003. Broussard is also the chief executive of OSF’s mortgage lending
subsidiary, OSF Financial Services, Inc.

7. Winfred Fields resides in Houston, Texas. He has been OSF’s chief financial officer
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since May 2003.

8. Monyette R. Preciado lives in Houston, Texas and is Broussard’s daughter. Sheis
an employee of OSF Financial Services, Inc.

9. Raven, Interests, Inc. is a Colorado corporation of which Preciado is the president

and sole owner. It is not registered with the Commission in any capacity and its stock is not publicly
traded.

10.  Tenn-Stone, Inc. is a Delaware corporation of which Preciado is the president and

sole owner. It is not registered with the Commission in any capacity and its stock is not publicly
traded.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

A. Stock Distribution Scheme

11.  OnMay 16, 2003, OSF had approximately 270,000 shares outstanding following a
100-1 reverse stock split. By April 21, 2004, OSF’s outstanding shares exceeded 84 million, due in
part to a partially executed capital-raising scheme formulated by Broussard and Fields, which was
initiated in May 2003. Under the scheme, OSF issued nearly 46 million purportedly “free trading”
shares of its stock (worth as much as $13.9 million if valued at contemporaneous market prices) to
the Controlled Entities and an entity owned by Field’s brother-in-law, who acted as Fields’ nominee.
The stock was issued in exghange for promissory notes, which were intended to be satisfied using
proceeds from subsequent sales of the OSF stock. No registration statement was filed with the
Commission with respect to the issuance of these shares.

12.  Following the issuance of the stock, Preciado, through the Controlled Entities, and

Fields, through his brother-in-law’s entity, ordered the sale of approximately 22.2 million of these
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shares through open-market transactions between August 25, 2003 and June 21, 2004, at prices
between $.01 and $.31 per share, for total proceeds of approximately $531,238. The proceeds were
used to fund OSF’s ongoing operating losses, or were used by, or for the personal benefit of,
Broussard, Fields, or Preciado. No registration statement was filed with the Commission with
respect to these sales of stock.

B. Fraudulent Publicity Campaign: Press Releases, Junk Faxes and Spam E-Mails

13.  To facilitate the illegal distribution of OSF stock, OSF issued eight press releases
between June and September 2003. Fields wrote all but one of the releases, which was written by
Broussard. Broussard reviewed and approved a majority of the releases prior to their dissemination.
Further, Broussard and Fields hired two promoters to tout OSF stock in return for 3.35 million shares
of OSF stock. One of the promoters wrote several slightly different versions of a promotional profile
touting OSF stock, which incorporated statements in OSF’s prior press releases. Broussard reviewed
and approved one of the versions of the profile. The promoters then arranged for the dissemination
of the profile to members of the public through unsolicited “junk mail” faxes and spam e-mails
between at least August 2003 and January 2004.

14, Certain of the press releases, faxes and e-mails resulted in increases in the market
price of OSF stock. For example, junk faxes disseminated between September 18 and 26, 2003
caused the closing price of OSF stock to increase by 250% from $.10 to $.35 per share. These
materials also resulted in volume increases. On 14 of the 23 dates (or ranges of dates) on which
these materials were disseminated, reported volume increased by between 8% and 9,060%, averaging

1,203%.
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15. In connection with the unregistered distribution of OSF stock set forth above, OSF,
Broussard and Fields disseminated false and misleading statements, as set forth below.

1. Third Party Business Relationships

16.  OSF made false statements about its business relationships wifh third parties. Three
of the releases, and the promotional profile, stated that OSF had signed a letter of intent to ent;:r into
a $400 million contract to purchase an equity position in a privately held company, United Medical
Group, Inc. (“UMG”), or that the parties had entered into such a contract or agreement. One of the
releases, and the profile, further stated that one of OSF’s subsidiaries had paid $20 million to UMG
in return for the equity position. These statements were false, because no contract or agreement
existed, and neither OSF nor its subsidiaries paid $20 million to UMG. Further, the statements about
a letter of intent were misleading. Although such a letter existed, it stated that éntering into a
binding contract was contingent on OSF’s ability to pay $20 million to UMG, which OSF did not
possess, and as to which there were no enforceable obligations. Neither the releases nor the profile
disclosed this contingency.

17.  An OSF release and the promotional profile stated that OSF was "currently pursuing”
prominent boxer Roy Jones Jr. for a “three-fight deal.” This statement was false and misleading
because OSF never contacted Jones or any of his representatives. Although an employee of OSF had
discussions about promoting a fight involving Jones, these discussions were with an individual who,
according to Jones’ attorney, did not represent Jones in any capacity. Indeed, on October 8, 2003,
Jones’ attorney wrote a letter directing OSF to cease and desist from using Jones’ name. However,
OSF, Broussard and Fields failed to take any action to correct or withdraw the false and misleading

release and promotional profile.
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18.  Broussard and Fields acted with scienter in making these statements. Both knew that
OSF could not provide, and had not in fact provided, the $20 million needed to consummate the
proposed transaction with UMG. Further, Broussard knew, and Fields was at least reckless in not
knowing, that no contract with UMG existed, given that OSF had signed only a letter of intent.
Moreover, at a minimum, Broussard and Fields were reckless in stating that OSF was pursuing a
business relationship with Jones, since they did not seek to verify that the individual with whom their
employee had spoken in fact represented Jones.

2. Revenues

19.  OSF, Broussard and Fields also misrepresented OSF’s historical revenues. Two
OSF releases, and the promotional profile, stated that OSF’s mortgage lending subsidiary had
realized more than $6.2 million in revenues during the first six months of 2003, which represented an
increase of up to 121% increase over its revenues from the first six months of 2002. These
statements were false because the $6.2 million figure cited in the releases was derived from loan
value rather than actual revenues. Both Broussard and Fields were aware of this fact, and therefore
were at least reckless in making this statement. Indeed, in October 2003, Fields admitted to an
employee of the National Association of Securities Dealers that the statement was inaccurate, and
agreed to take corrective action. However, However, OSF, Broussard and Fields failed to take any
action to correct or withdraw the false and misleading releases and promotional profile.

3. NASDAQ Listing

20.  OSF made false statements about imminent Nasdagq listing. Two of the releases, and
the profile, stated that OSF had retained an audit firm for the purpose of enabling OSF to obtain

NASDAQ listing, or that OSF was moving towards applying for such listing. These statements were
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false. Although the auditing firm had previously audited the financial statements of an OSF
subsidiary, OSF had not retained that or any other firm to audit its consolidated financial statements.
Further, OSF did not qualify for Nasdaq listing because, among other reasons, the company lacked
audited financial statements. Moreover, OSF never applied for such listing. At a minimum,
Broussard and Field acted recklessly in‘ making these statements since there was no basis for
believing that OSF had retained an audit firm, both knew that OSF needed to have audited financial
statements to qualify for Nasdaq listing, and both knew that no application for such listing had been

filed.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF

[VIOLATIONS BY DEFENDANTS OSF, BROUSSARD, AND FIELDS OF SECTION
17(A) OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND SECTION 10(b) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT
AND RULE 10b-5 THEREUNDER (15 U.S.C. §77q (a) and 15 U.S.C. §§ 78j (b)]

21.  Paragraphs 1 through 20 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference.

22. Defendants OSF, Broussard and Fields, directly and indirectly, with scienter, in the
offer or sale and in connection with the purchase or sale of OSF securities, by use of the means or
instrumentalities of interstate commerce or by use of the mails, have employed devices, schemes, or
artifices to defraud; have made untrue statements of material fact or omitted to state material facts
necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were

made, not misleading; or have engaged in acts, practices, or courses of business which have been and

are operating as a fraud or deceit upon the purchasers or sellers of such securities.
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23. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants OSF, Broussard and Fields violated and
unless restrained and enjoined will continue to violate Section 17(a) of the Securities Act and

Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 thereunder.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

[VIOLATIONS BY DEFENDANTS OSF, BROUSSARD, FIELDS, PRECIADO, RAVEN
AND TENN-STONE OF SECTIONS 5(a) AND 5(c) OF THE SECURITIES ACT ([15
U.S.C. §§ 77¢ (a) and 77e(c)]

24, Paragraphs 1 through 20 are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference.

25. From at least August 2003 to June 2004, defendants OSF, Broussard, Fields,
Preciado, Raven and Tenn-Stone, directly and indirectly, made use of the means or instruments of
transportation and communication in interstate,commerce and of the mails to offer to sell or offer to
buy, through the use or medium of any prospectus or otherwise, OSF securities.

26.  Atthetime of such offers and sales, no registration statements had been filed with the
Commission or were otherwise in effect with respect to the OSF stock offered and sold by the
defendants.

27.  Byreason of the foregoing, defendants OSF, Broussard, Fields, Preciado, Raven and

Tenn-Stone have violated and unless restrained and enjoined will continue to violate Sections 5(a)
and 5(c) of the Securities Act.

RELIEF REQUESTED

The Commission requests that the Court:
1. Enter an order against Defendants OSF, Broussard and Fields, preliminarily and

permanently enjoining them from violating Sections 5(a), 5(c), and 17(a) of the Securities Act and
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Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 thereunder;

2. Enter an order against Defendants Preciado, Raven and Tenn-Stone, preliminarily
and permanently enjoining them from violating Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act;

3. Order defendants OSF, Broussard, Fields, Preciado, Raven and Tenn-Stone to account
for and disgorge all ill-gotten gains received and any benefits in any form derived from the illegal
conduct alleged in this Complaint, plus pre- and post-judgment interest;

4. Order defendants OSF, Broussard and Fields to pay civil penalties pursuant to Section
20(d) of the Securities Act {15 U.S.C. § 77t] and Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act [15U.S.C. §
78u(d)] in an amount to be determined by the Court;

5. Order defendants Preciado, Raven and Tenn-stone to pay civil penalties pursuant to
Section 20(d) of the Securities Act in an amount to be determined by the Court;

6. Enter an order barring defendants Broussard and Fields from serving as officers or
directors of any publicly held company pursuant to Section 21(d)(2) of the Exchange Act[15 U.S.C.
§ 78u(d)(2)];

7. Enter an order barring defendants Broussard, Fields and Preciado from participating
in any offering of penny stock pursuant to Section 21(d)(6) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §

78u(d)(6)]; and

10
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8. Order such other and further relief as the Commission may show itself entitled.

DATED: November 9, 2004

Respectfully submitted,

Julie K. I%ltz g ~
Elizabeth Krupa
Attorneys for Plaintiff

11
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